
Date : 11/30/2022 3:38:33 PM
From : "Alphonse Talarico" 
To : "Paul Dulberg" , "Paul Dulberg" 
Subject : Fw: Dulberg v. The L.O. of Thomas Popovich, et al. (17 LA 377)
Attachment : NOF - Defendants_ Response to Plaintiff_s 2nd Amended Motion to Exclude 
the Deposition of Hans Mast.PDF; Defendants_ Response to Plaintiff_s 2nd Amended 
Motion to Exclude the Deposition of Hans Mast.PDF; image001.jpg; image002.png; 
image003.png; 
 
Please see attached.
What information do you know about the named defendant Allstate insurance company ?
From: Linda Walters <lwalters@karballaw.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2022 2:54 PM
To: Alphonse Talarico <contact@lawofficeofalphonsetalarico.com>
Cc: George Flynn <gflynn@karballaw.com>
Subject: Dulberg v. The L.O. of Thomas Popovich, et al. (17 LA 377) 
 
On behalf of George Flynn, please see the attached filed today, November 30, 2022:
 

A DEFENDANTS' RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF'S 2ND AMENDED MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE 
DEPOSITION OF HANS MAST and NOTICE OF FILING

 
Thank you.

Linda Walters

Karbal | Cohen | Economou | Silk | Dunne | LLC
200 S. Wacker Drive
Suite 2550
Chicago, IL 60606 

 P: (312) 431-3641
 F: (312) 431-3670
 E: lwalters@karballaw.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: 
This electronic message transmission contains information from the law firm of Karbal, Cohen, Economou, Silk & Dunne, LLC. 
which may be confidential or privileged. The information is intended to be for the use of the individual or entity named above. If you 
are not the intended recipient, please immediately delete this e-mail and be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of 
the contents of this information is prohibited.





IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 


MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 


PAUL DULBERG, 


 


 Plaintiff, 


 


) 


) 


) 


) 


) 


) 


) 


) 


) 


) 


 


 


vs. 


 


No. 17 LA 377 


THE LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. 


POPOVICH, P.C., and HANS MAST, 


 


 Defendants. 


  


NOTICE OF FILING 


 


TO: All Attorneys of Record (See Attached Service List) 


 


 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 30th day of November 2022, we filed with the Clerk 


of the 22ND Judicial Circuit Court of McHenry County, Illinois, DEFENDANTS' RESPONSE TO 


PLAINTIFF'S 2ND AMENDED MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE DEPOSITION OF HANS MAST, a copy of which 


is attached hereto and hereby served upon you. 


 


 Dated at Chicago, Illinois, this 30th day of November 2022. 


 


GEORGE K. FLYNN 


KARBAL COHEN ECONOMOU SILK DUNNE, LLC 


ARDC No. 6239349 


200 So. Wacker Drive, Suite 2550 


Chicago, Illinois 60606 


(312) 431-3700 


Attorneys for Defendants 


gflynn@karballaw.com 


 
AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 


 


 I, the undersigned, a non-attorney, certify that this Notice was served to all parties listed as service 


contacts in the Odyssey eFileIL system, and by email to the attached service list on November 30, 2022. 


 


[X] Under penalties as provided by law pursuant to 735 ILCS 5/1-109,  


I certify that the statements set forth herein are true and correct.      


  


        /s/ Linda Walters    


       Linda Walters 


 







 2 


 


SERVICE LIST 


 


Plaintiff’s Attorney 


 


Alphonse A. Talarico 


Law Office of Alphonse A. Talarico 


707 Skokie Blvd 6th Floor Suite  


Northbrook, IL 60062-2841 


contact@lawofficeofalphonsetalarico.com 


(312) 808-1410  


 


 


 



mailto:contact@lawofficeofalphonsetalarico.com
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


 


 


DEFENDANTS THE LAW OFFICES OF THOMAS J. POPOVICH, P.C. AND HANS  


MAST’S RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF’S 2nd AMENDED MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE 


DEPOSITION OF HANS MAST 


 


Defendants The Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich, P.C. and Hans Mast (collectively 


“Popovich”), by and through their attorneys, Karbal, Cohen, Economou, Silk & Dunne, LLC, 


and for their Response to Plaintiff’s 2nd Amended Motion to Exclude the deposition of Hans 


Mast, state as follows: 


1)   Plaintiff Paul Dulberg (“Dulberg”) is improperly requesting a drastic remedy 


that amounts to the equivalent of a severe discovery sanction against defendants due to Dulberg’s  


perceived irregularity regarding an exhibit sticker in connection with a party deposition he 


caused to be taken, and by a court reporter he retained.  Defendants had nothing to do with the 


“irregularity” and should not be further prejudiced by issues. Simply put, he seeks relief for his 


own alleged violation of the rules.   


2) The court heard argument on this matter on November 4, 2022.  Defendants had 


not filed any written response at that time, and Dulberg late file his 2nd Amended Motion to 


Exclude Mast’s deposition.  Defendants hereby adopt their arguments contained in the transcript 
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from the 11-4-22 hearing (Exhibit A) and submit this additional response in opposition to 


Plaintiff’s motion.  


3) The instant motion is the latest costly litigated matter made necessary by 


Dulberg’s multiple substitutions of counsel.  His current (now third) attorney entered his 


appearance on October 23, 2020.  The deposition at issue was taken by Dulberg’s second 


attorney on June 25, 2020.  Dulberg’s original Motion to Exclude the Hans Mast deposition was 


filed by his third attorney on October 12, 2022, just 11 (eleven) days shy of the second 


anniversary of his appearance in the case. 


4) Dulberg improperly seeks to exclude a discovery deposition  apparently because 


he does not like the result—he apparently does not like the testimony that was elicited or the 


performance of his counsel.  In this and related proceedings, he has caused communications 


between himself and his prior counsel to be produced. These documents include deposition 


questions he proposed to his then counsel in advance of the Mast deposition.  Dulberg is now 


asking for a “do-over” because Mast’s testimony was apparently not satisfactory to him.  


Whatever disputes Dulberg may have with his prior counsel in this instant case, he should not be 


allowed a second bite at the apple as a result of those disputes.  He attempts to mischaracterize a 


minor discrepancy with one exhibit to the deposition, and difficulties with defendant’s wi-fi 


connection during the zoom deposition (which were overcome), as warranting the exclusion of 


the deposition.  This is absurd.   


5)  As an initial matter, Dulberg asserts that Mast’s deposition was taken in violation 


of Illinois Supreme Court Rule 206 h (2), and other orders entered in response to the COVID-19 


pandemic.  But he should be required to take a position as to  who committed the alleged 


violation(s).  In his 2nd Amended Motion, he vaguely asserts “violations.”   
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6) Paul Dulberg personally observed the discovery deposition of Hans Mast taken 


remotely (by Zoom) on June 25, 2020.  If he had an objections to alleged irregularities with the 


deposition, he had ample time to bring such issues to the attention of his counsel, Julia Williams, 


and to his current counsel who appeared on his behalf on October 23, 2020.   


7) Illinois Supreme Court Rule 211 governs this issue.  Rule 211 (c) (2) reads as 


follows:  “Objections to the form of a question or answer, errors and irregularities occurring at 


the oral examination in the manner or taking of the deposition, in the oath or affirmation, or in 


the conduct of any person, and errors and irregularities of any kind which might be corrected if 


promptly presented, are waived unless seasonable objection thereto is made at the taking of the 


deposition.” 


8)  Rule 211 (D) provides: “Errors and irregularities in the manner in which the 


testimony is transcribed or the deposition is prepared, signed, certified, sealed, indorsed, 


transmitted, filed, or otherwise dealt with by the officer are waived unless a motion to suppress 


the deposition or some part thereof is made with reasonable promptness after the defect is, or 


with due diligence might have been, ascertained. 


9) Dulberg did not object or raise his objections with reasonable promptness, under 


any analysis.  He was present for Mast’s deposition 2.5 years ago, and his counsel had years to 


bring a motion.  Instead, he seeks to prejudice defendants by waiting until fact discovery is 


closed and he faces summary disposition.  Defendant’s submit that even if the court found his 


objections to be timely, that the court find that any irregularities (“violations”) were 1) caused 


solely by Dulberg or his agents,  2) that any irregularities were harmless, 3) that any alleged 


irregularity simply be given its weight by the finder of fact (if as to any fact issue), 4) that no 
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remedy be ordered in Dulberg’s favor, and 5) the court weigh any remedy in favor of defendants 


it sees fit to order under Rule 201 (c)(1)(2) and (3).  


10) In response to Dulberg’s argument at paragraph A3.3 of his 2nd Amended Motion 


to Exclude relating to his exhibit 16 (Email from defendant’s counsel George K. Flynn) Dulberg 


takes the position that there was no discussion of any errors or irregularities in the “just 


concluded deposition.”  That is exactly right.  Dulberg’s counsel did not raise any issues or 


objections in response to the email.  She was apparently satisfied with the outcome, despite some 


minor technical difficulties during the deposition. She never voiced any suggestion that an 


additional session of Hans Mast’s deposition was necessary or requested.  Flynn didn’t make any 


mention of it because any technical difficulties seemed inconsequential.  


11) Dulberg’s motion at page 11 begins to purportedly outline violations of the rules, 


but again without explicitly identifying who violated any such rule. Nor is there any analysis or 


conclusion reached--only a litany of facts, chronology, and innuendos. No basis for any remedy 


is discussed or analyzed. 


12) Of concern is a statement on page 19 of Dulberg’s motion in which he argues that 


Mast had insisted that the decision in the Tilschner v. Spangler case was the reason Dulberg 


would not prevail in the underlying case against the McGuire’s.  The statement is inexplicably 


made “on information and belief.”  This is unacceptable.  Dulberg has made no such disclosure 


in fact discovery (now closed) about this very specific discussion between Mast and himself 


regarding the Tilschner case.  If Dulberg believes he has disclosed it, he should be required to 


identify where in his answers and amended answers to discovery or his deposition he has 


identified such discussion with this amount of specificity. Defendants submit that no such 


disclosure exists.  
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WHEREFORE Defendants The Law Offices of Thomas J. Popovich, P.C. and Hans 


Mast, respectfully request that this Court enter an Order denying Plaintiff’s 2nd Amended Motion 


to Exclude Mast’s deposition, and for any further relief this court deems fair and proper. 


 Respectfully submitted, 


 


/s/ George K. Flynn 


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


 





































































































































